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Who are we?
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The mission of the Financial Reporting Council is to uphold the quality of financial reporting by listed
entities in Hong Kong so as to enhance protection for investors and strengthen investor confidence
in corporate reporting. The FRC is entrusted with statutory responsibilities to conduct independent
investigations into possible auditing and reporting irregularities by auditors of listed entities, and
enquiries into possible non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed entities.
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A New Era
42 T

With the passage of the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Bill on 30 January 2019, our
roles have been expanded. When the Ordinance takes effect, the FRC will become the independent
listed entity auditor regulator for Hong Kong with direct powers of inspection, investigation, discipline
concerning auditors of listed entities (PIE auditors) and oversight of the performance of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in respect of their functions for registration; standards
on professional ethics and auditing and assurance; and continuing
professional development requirements in relation to PIE auditors. This
will bring Hong Kong’s auditor regulatory regime in line with other major
capital markets worldwide and enable us to become a member of the
International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR) whose
members from around the world share their regulatory experience and
inspection findings with the aim of enhancing audit quality.

The FRC is well-prepared to embrace the opportunities and challenges
in this new era to further enhance investor protection.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Having served the Council since 2015 as a Council member, | am
honoured to have been appointed as the Chairman of the Financial
Reporting Council at the most exciting time as we enter a new era upon
the enactment of the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance
2019 (“Amendment Ordinance”). As one of the leading international financial
centres, it is imperative that Hong Kong have an effective, independent,
and internationally aligned auditor regulatory regime under which investors’
interests can be duly protected. Therefore, the new era came at an
opportune time.

New Era, New Roles

Under the new era, the FRC will assume the role of the independent
auditor regulator. We will be vested with the direct powers of inspection,
investigation, discipline concerning auditors of public interest (PIE
auditors) and oversight of the performance of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) in respect of their functions for
registration, standards on professional ethics and auditing and assurance,
and continuing professional development requirements in relation to PIE
auditors. As the independent auditor regulator, we will defend the law and
promote corporate governance for PIE auditors in Hong Kong.

As a defender of law, we are determined to bridge the long due gap of
investor protection through effective regulation of PIE auditors in Hong
Kong. This will complete the regulatory spectrum of Hong Kong.
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The FRC will adopt a regulatory approach
that is transparent and conducive to the
building of mutual trust and respect in the
exercise of the expanded powers.
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As a promoter of corporate governance, we will act as a thought leader to
encourage and influence PIE auditors to establish best practices in relation
to financial reporting. | firmly believe that our inspection and oversight
functions will empower us to drive such change, which in the long run, will
enhance audit quality and facilitate the healthy development of the audit
profession.

Quality financial reporting is the backbone of an efficient financial market
and auditors are at the forefront of assuring the quality of financial reporting,
failing which public confidence and trust on listed companies will be
undermined. It is therefore provident that the FRC is given the expanded
powers and responsibilities to uphold the quality of financial reporting in
Hong Kong.

The FRC will adopt a regulatory approach that is transparent and conducive
to the building of mutual trust and respect in the exercise of the expanded
powers. We will strive to work closely with our key stakeholders including
the auditing professionals and the HKICPA with an aim of enhancing
audit quality. Our decisions in relation to our inspection, investigation and
disciplinary roles will be made based on sound evidence and detailed
analysis and will be communicated clearly to those being regulated.

Our Preparations

In order to embrace the new opportunities and challenges ahead, the FRC
has prioritised the following tasks:

Establish a new organisation structure

First of all, we are mapping out a new organisation structure that duly
reflects our expanded roles under the new regime. As the Chairman, |
will work closely with other members of the Council to formulate visionary
strategies and a new organisation structure that are beneficial to the
development of the FRC as an effective regulator.

Retain, Recruit and Develop talents

Second, the FRC will further strengthen our team of staff to carry out our
regulatory functions effectively. The FRC currently has a complement of 27
professional and dedicated staff without whom the FRC would not have
come this far. In view of our expanded roles, my job is to ensure that our
organisation is equipped with adequate human resources and has in place
transparent management processes to discharge our responsibilities. In
the near future, we will create a new organisation structure with divisional
responsibilities and conduct a rigorous recruitment exercise to hire a
significant number of qualified and competent new staff. We will benchmark
our employment packages against market practice and introduce
competitive terms and conditions in order to attract and retain talent. | have
a firm belief that the strengthened staff force will contribute significantly to
the effective functioning of the FRC in the new regime.
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Develop policies, procedures and guidelines

Third, we are developing appropriate policies, procedures, and guidelines in
anticipation of the expected commencement of the Amendment Ordinance
in the fourth quarter of this year. In particular, we are now conducting
consultation in relation to the sanctions guidelines which are required to be
published for the FRC to impose any pecuniary penalty. To this end, we
have arranged meetings and briefings with different stakeholders including
audit firms and professional bodies to ensure voices are heard and views
understood. Upon completion of our consultation towards late April, we
will evaluate all the comments received. | have also invited two Council
Members and an Honorary Advisor to provide an independent review of
the market commentaries. We are confident that with their valuable inputs,
a comprehensive set of guidelines can be in place soon for the smooth
implementation of the new regime.

Regulatory Collaboration

On the international front, the FRC will foster seamless collaborations with
overseas and Mainland regulators. We are preparing for our application for
membership of the International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators
(IFIAR) which will benefit Hong Kong in two ways. First, this will enable us
to benchmark Hong Kong’s audit practice against international standards
while ensuring that we remain relevant in the local context. Second, we will
be entitled to share information on regulatory experience and inspection
findings with members from around the world which will enhance audit
quality globally in the long run.

We have also been engaging in regular and constructive dialogue with
PRC’s Ministry of Finance (MoF) in respect of strengthening future
collaboration when the Amendment Ordinance takes effect. In February
2019, we paid a courtesy visit to the MoF and had a fruitful discussion on the
draft of the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) that aims to facilitate
closer cross-border cooperation in gaining access to audit working papers
located in the Mainland.
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Dr Kelvin Wong (3* from right), Chairman of
the FRC met with Mr Gao Jinxing (3* from left),
Director General, Supervision and Investigation
Bureau, MoF.
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Vote of Thanks

My first statement would not be complete without sharing with you my
gratitude to my predecessors including past Chairmen Ms Sophia Kao
and Dr John Poon and past CEOs Mr MT Shum, Dr PM Kam and Mr
Mark Dickens who had led the FRC to become a strong and effective
organisation. In particular, the 6-year efforts of Dr Poon has laid a
solid foundation for the FRC to perform its new roles as a fully-fledged
independent oversight body of auditors of listed entities. My earnest thanks
also go to the past members including Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Mr
Sin Chung-kai and Mr David Stannard who retired in November 2018, our
present Council members and Honorary Advisors whose collective wisdom
has steered the FRC throughout our journey to the new era.

My special thanks go to our CEO Mr Paul F. Winkelmann who will leave the
FRC upon the completion of his contract in March. During his three-year
service from 2016 and 2019, Paul has led the team to deal with the ever-
increasing workload efficiently and professionally under his outstanding
leadership. We are now in the process of recruiting a new CEO and believe
that with the new regime underway, the position will attract candidates with
outstanding leadership and professional expertise to take the FRC to the
next level.

Last but not least, | would like to express my appreciation of, and thanks
to the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau and the four funding
parties — the Companies Registry Trading Fund, the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (HKEX), the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) for
their staunch support to the FRC.

Looking Ahead

There is no time like the present. The FRC is on a strong foothold to take on
the new challenges and our new roles and to discharge our responsibilities
faithfully, honorably, transparently, and fairly as an internationally aligned
independent auditor regulator for Hong Kong. As a closing note, | would like
to share a Chinese poem which signifies the unwavering spirit of the FRC in
the new regime.

Bamboos on the Rocks — by Zheng Bangiao

On the peak it firmly stands

Deeply rooted strong in rocks and sands
Against all the blows and wind

The bamboo stays evergreen
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2018 turned out to be another very active year for the FRC. It was a year in
which a Bill on auditor regulatory reform was presented to the Legislative
Council (“LegCo”) and was examined in detail by a Bills Committee, a record
number of investigation and enquiry cases were completed and 7 new staff
members joined.

Regulatory Reform

On 24 January 2018, the Government introduced the FRC (Amendment)
Bill 2018 (“the Bill") to LegCo. A Bills Committee was formed and 7 Bills
Committee meetings examined the Bill clause by clause culminating with
their final meeting on 17 December 2018. During that period we supported
Government by preparing various research and analysis papers to assist
them in their responses to questions raised. We also spent a considerable
amount of time on our updated outreach programme whereby we gave
presentations to all audit firms that audit listed entities to explain in detail
not only the provisions of the Bill but also our views on how the legislation
should be implemented in practice. We also included in our programme
presentations to the media and updates to the accountancy professional
bodies and other regulatory bodies in Hong Kong. More details on these
activities are included in our special newsletter issued on 10 December
2018.
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Mr Paul F. Winkelmann Chief Executive Officer
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The most auspicious start to 2019 came on
30 January 2019 when LegCo resumed the
second reading, completed the third reading
and enacted the Ordinance. This was most
welcome news and we are delighted that
Hong Kong will now have an internationally
recognised independent listed entity auditor
regulator once it becomes effective.

201951 A301 @ M AEMETE » TR=BEIL
GRBIERFIERED - EE 2019 F R IFHIRME - &
BE—KEH
BHEL BRI E TS o

RBIENE - BEER—EAZERR

2018 FRMBERB S —EEERRNEE < RITF
REFERIDERREAARBMETRENFIE
TRERZBEETHARTE - SFC KA
EREMERRE BEHFS  LACRMETMA -

-
e

EERE

201841 A24 8  BUNMEEIRE 2018 F 0175
B (SR BIBER(TEHIER]) - ZREZEE
EFRIRBRITT 7RG UNEEEEER B —
K@ 201812 517 B 417 - R HART - FfF
B TS B0 M ST DA 1 Bh B [ 7B 2 B BV 3R
Bl e TESNBETEI A E - ARBMAMMBEBESRT L
MEENSTMEHMFMBEERIEN - RHA
WMESEE B BEG - BAINREERS RAEEN
SHEEERKHEMEEUEFIAETER -6
ZEEYME LT BER2HN2018F12 5108 T8
VEF B (RFRIAR) ©



In May 2018, the CEO gave presentations on the FRC (Amendment) Bill to all audit firms that audit listed entities.
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Following completion of the clause by clause examination by the Bills
Committee they issued their report to LegCo in late January 2019.

The most auspicious start to 2019 came on 30 January 2019 when LegCo
resumed the second reading, completed the third reading and enacted the
legislation. This was most welcome news and we are delighted that Hong
Kong will now have an internationally recognised independent listed entity
auditor regulator once it becomes effective.

2018 Operations

Eliminating the anomalies created in 2017 and earlier years, the number of
pursuable complaints received in 2018 increased by 38% over 2017. The
percentage of pursuable complaints received from the public surpassed
those received from other regulators for the first time in our history. | believe
this is good news in that members of the public are now becoming more
aware of the work that we do and support our mission to enhance financial
reporting in Hong Kong.

2018 also saw a record number of investigations and enquiries completed.
A total of 16 investigations and 1 enquiry were completed which is not only
a record since we commenced operations, but is an increase of 55% over
2017.

Much of this success is due to the introduction of setting targets. Such
targets are discussed and agreed with our investigation staff at the
beginning of the year and are now monitored monthly. In addition, an
ageing analysis and average age since inception is monitored by the case
management team and reported to Council and Operations Oversight
Committee every two months at their regular meetings. | am very pleased
to report that we are within our targets, which have been decided following
discussions with other auditor regulators in various jurisdictions and the
average age of cases has come down during the year. All this has been
achieved without affecting the quality and effectiveness of our operations
and output.
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Further discussion and analysis of our operations can be found in the “Management
and Operations Review” section on pages 26 to 41 of this annual report.

| reported last year that the changes made to our financial statements review
programme had brought us up to date and had brought a better focus to
areas of likely non-compliance and/or auditing irregularities. This is borne out
by noting that in at least two recent complaints, we had already identified the
issues and commenced investigations.

Regulator Outreach

Our outreach to other regulators, both local and international, escalated
this year. In addition to our regular liaison with the Securities and Futures
Commission, the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants which continues to prove to
be beneficial in terms of dealing with effective cross-referrals and common
findings, we took the opportunity to also update each of them on the
progress of the Bill by reference to the materials made public during the Bills
Committee meetings.

An updated draft of a proposed Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”)
with the PRC Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) has been shared with them and we
have received positive feedback from the MOF. We will meet with the MOF
shortly to introduce our new Chairman and discuss their comments on the
draft MOU.

As CEO, | attended a regional roundtable discussion held in Singapore on
“Strengthening the governance and oversight of the audit-related standard
setting in the public interest”. This was followed up by a second meeting in
Hong Kong later in the year. The FRC was able to directly provide its views and
comment on this topic on both occasions. In addition, | and my Deputy CEO
held a meeting with a member of The International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board to discuss their proposed new and updated standards on
quality controls, which will impact the audit firms and their regulators.

We also hosted a meeting with Mr Carl Renner from the International Forum
of Independent Audit Regulators (“IFIAR”) in which we updated him on the
progress of the Bill and discussed the requirements and procedures for
application for membership. We have since naotified IFIAR of the enactment
of the Bill.

In June 2018, the CEO of the FRC updated Mr Carl Renner
from IFIAR on the progress of the Bill.
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Staff Matters

Each year our professional staff attend various technical accounting and
auditing courses to ensure they keep up to date with technical matters. In
2018 we also added a 3-day workshop on coaching and evaluation skills
with a view to enhancing our team work and staff counselling and evaluation
procedures.

None of the achievements mentioned above could have happened without
the considerable support provided by all staff members to our various new
initiatives for which | am very grateful. In addition, it is incumbent on me
to express my gratitude to my core management team whose assistance,
dedication and professionalism ensure that we continue to grow from
strength to strength.
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Concluding Observations

2019 will be an era of significant change for the FRC. Having enacted the
legislation on regulatory reform the FRC is fully committed to preparing
and implementing the changes necessary to bring effect to the legislation
as soon as practicable. We look forward to further outreach in respect of
various policies and guidelines as we move towards an effective date.

Acknowledgement

| would like to acknowledge the considerable support | and my team
have received from both the former and current Chairman, together with
the Council and Committee members, the Honorary Advisory Panel, the
Financial Reporting Review Panel, the Financial Services and the Treasury
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heights and a new era is commencing.
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Senior staff attending a 3-day workshop on coaching and
evaluation skills.
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Chairman

ESE

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (appointment effective 15 December 2018; term expires on
30 November 2020)

Dr Wong is the Immediate Past Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and a member of Operations Review Committee of Independent Commission
Against Corruption. He is an Executive Director, a Deputy Managing Director
and the Chairman of Corporate Governance Committee of COSCO SHIPPING
Ports Limited. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of seven listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Dr Wong was a Non-executive Director of the Securities and Futures Commission
(2012-2018), the Chairman of Investor Education Centre (2017-2018), a
member of Financial Reporting Council (2015-2018), a convenor-cum-member
of Financial Reporting Review Panel (2013-2016), a member of Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform (2010-2016), a member of Main Board and
GEM Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (2007-
2013) and a member of Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (2006-2008).

Members

=]

Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (re-appointment effective 1 December 2018 on
the nomination of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited; term expires
on 30 November 2020)

Mr Chan is a Senior Advisor of The Bank of East Asia and CVC Capital Partners.
He is a veteran banker with over 30 years of banking experience covering Hong
Kong, Japan, Taiwan and Mainland China. He currently serves on the boards of
various listed companies, NGOs and government statutory bodies.
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Mr Eugene Fung, SC (appointment effective 1 December 2018; term expires on
30 November 2020)

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in the fields of
commercial law, trusts and probate, tax, property litigation, and company and
insolvency law. He is also a Recorder of the High Court, the Chairman of the
Banking Review Tribunal and a Deputy Chairman of the Administrative Appeals
Board. He was a member of the Law Reform Commission of Hong Kong from
2012 to 2018.

Mr Wilson Fung (re-appointment effective 1 December 2018 on the nomination
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; term expires on 30
November 2020)

Mr Fung has over 17 years of experience in auditing in Hong Kong and England
followed by 21 years as a Financial Controller in Jardine Matheson. He is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He was elected as President of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2010. He was formerly a
convenor to the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial Reporting
Council (2007-2013). Mr Fung is the Founding President of Hong Kong Business
Accountants Association and currently serves on the Boards of several NGOs
and statutory bodies.

Mr Stephen Hung (appointment effective 1 December 2018; term expires on 30
November 2020)

Mr Hung is the Past President and a current member of the Council of the
Law Society of Hong Kong. As a representative of the Law Society, he serves
Judicial Officers Recommendation Commission. In his own capacity, he serves
on the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority, the Law Reform
Commission, Sub-committee on Causing or Allowing the Death of a Child, the
Communications Authority, the Professional Services Advancement Support
Scheme Vetting Committee and the Lump Sum Grant Steering Committee. He is
an Adjunct Professor of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, the Law School
of Beijing Normal University and Visiting Professor of the Faculty of International
Law of China University of Political Science and Law in Beijing, China.
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PROFILES OF FRC MEMBERS (continued)

BIFERFRERE N @

Ms Miranda Kwok (appointment effective 1 December 2018; term expires on 30
November 2020)

Ms Kwok is the President and Executive Director of China Construction Bank
(Asia). She has been serving the bank for over 34 years. She is Vice-President of
the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, member of the EFAC Financial Infrastructure
and Market Development Sub-committee, Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation Advisory Board as well as the Air Transport Licensing Authority.

Ms Rosita Lee (appointment effective 1 December 2018; term expires on 30
November 2020)

Ms Lee is the Head of Investment Products and Advisory Business of Hang Seng
Bank Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of Hang Seng Investment
Management Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of Hang Seng
Investment Services Limited, a Director of Hang Seng Qianhai Fund Management
Company Limited and a member of China Committee of Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce.

She serves a number of public appointments in HK, including the Securities and
Futures Commission, The Sir David Trench Fund for Recreation, The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund, and the Correctional Service Children’s
Education Trust.

Ms Lee holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree from The University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Science Degree in Global Finance jointly awarded by the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and New York University STERN
Business School and is CFPcm certified.

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (re-appointment effective 1 December 2018 on
the nomination of the Securities and Futures Commission; term expires on 30
November 2020)

Mr Wong was a Non-executive Director of the Securities and Futures
Commission (2009-2015) and a member of the Listing Committee of the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (1999-2003).
He was an audit partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong before his
retirement in June 2005. He has served/is serving as an Independent Non-
executive Director of several companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr Wong has
also served on advisory committees and statutory bodies established by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, boards of charities
and councils of universities.
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Ms Eirene Yeung (Acting Chairman) (re-appointment effective 1 December
2018; term expires on 30 November 2020)

Ms Yeung is Executive Committee Member and the Company Secretary of
CK Asset Holdings Limited. She is also a member of the SFC (HKEC Listing)
Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission, the Advisory Committee
on Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption and the Vice
Chairman of the General Committee of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies. She is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and a non-practising solicitor of the Senior Courts of
England and Wales.

Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) (appointment effective 27 August 2007)

Ms Chung is the Registrar of Companies. As a representative of the Financial
Secretary, she is an ex-officio council member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Before her
appointment as the Registrar, she was a Deputy Law Officer of the Department
of Justice. She is qualified as a certified public accountant and a barrister-at-law.

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) (appointment effective on 1 April 2016; term
expires on 31 March 2019)

Mr Winkelmann is the Chief Executive Officer of the Financial Reporting Council.
He has rich experience in the accounting profession. He was the partner-in-
charge of PricewaterhouseCoopers’ Risk and Quality team in Greater China
(2002-2014) and was the President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 2009. He also served as the Chairman of the Financial
Reporting Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (2004-2009) which oversaw the full convergence of Hong Kong’s
accounting standards with the international standards. He is a former member
of the Operations Oversight Committee of the Financial Reporting Council from
August 2013 until his appointment as Chief Executive Officer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
EBER

The mission of the FRC is to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed
entities in Hong Kong by exercising its statutory powers under the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (FRCO).

The FRC is committed to high standards of corporate governance and
operates within a comprehensive framework of values and guidelines
that emphasises integrity, proficiency, independence and impartiality,
accountability and transparency. To facilitate effective operations and
management of the organisation, the FRC has adopted the best practices
outlined by the International Federation of Accountants and has in place
a clearly defined governing structure, high standards of conduct, reliable
internal control procedures and appropriate checks and balances.

Organisation Structure
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The Council

The FRC is governed by its Members, who operate as a Council. A majority
of Council Members, including the Chairman, are lay persons, i.e., non-
accountants. All members are independent of the audit profession. This
ensures the Council’s independence in carrying out its functions.

The primary functions of the Council are set out in the FRCO and include:

(i) reviewing complaints concerning non-compliance with accounting
requirements by listed entities as well as complaints concerning
auditing or reporting irregularities by auditors of listed entities;

(i) making enquiries into non-compliance and investigating auditing or
reporting irregularities; and

(i) approving and overseeing the policies and activities of boards and
committees established by Council.

The FRC’s Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) on
the recommendation of the Council. As at 31 December 2018, there were
11 Members on the Council. Three of these 11 members are nominated
by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC) respectively. The Registrar of Companies or her
representative, and the FRC’s CEO, are ex-officio members.

Council members are appointed for a two year term which is renewable.
Procedures are in place to ensure an adequate rotation of members on an
annual basis.

Council members come from a variety of backgrounds with diversified
and relevant skills which includes accountants, lawyers and members
with extensive business experience. While there is no ruling on gender
diversification, four of the eleven members are female. Profiles for each
member can be found on pages 12 to 15 of this report. Not only do Council
members attend meetings of the Council, but each member is involved in
at least two of the underlying committees thus ensuring they are involved
extensively in the affairs of the Council.

Members of the Council are legally bound to declare any interests they may
have in a case. Council Members present during deliberations or decision-
making by HKEX, the HKICPA or the SFC relating to cases to be referred
to the FRC are considered as having an interest in that case. In accordance
with the FRCO, Council Members having such an interest may not (a) be
present during any deliberation by the Council, (b) take part in any decision
of the Council, or (c) be given any documents related to the case.
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CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
BEERw

The CEO and his staff manage the operations of the FRC, reporting to
Council in accordance with the provisions of the procedural manual. Council
in turn gives directives to the CEO and FRC staff, and ensures that the
organisation’s statutory functions are being performed effectively. The roles
of Chairman and CEO are separate and distinct.

Council Meetings

The Council meets once every two months and holds additional meetings
as and when necessary. In addition to discussing specific agenda items,
progress reports on all ongoing cases, management accounts and other
operating statistics are submitted for review at each regular meeting.
In 2018, the Council held six meetings, all of which were conducted in
accordance with the provisions of the FRCO.

Membership and attendance at Council meetings in 2018 was as follows:

TREZLEETEENBERRNAFERE I
RIBRFFMOVEX A ABERTE - AR RTT
BN B THIMIES  MRARETEBIET
BAE - TRMACELERINTTHARN AR -

HHEERDKESH
MBEHRBXESMEART - REH  LERF
RARBNEZE THERE L BT IRFENH
RIBBRZIN MERETHERMNERRE - B2
FRE MEMEERBENEPIR2EM - ARKER
2018FHBITTNAREH - MESHIRIKTG
BEE 5 R R 01 ) R ST T ©

HMEERBN2018FH R LK E R EEN
T

Meetings attended/held

18

SREEBITRE
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP' (Chairman) EEREL  IRRFAESE KT (£FE) 6/6
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP? BRABLE K Pt 3/6
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP FRFEEE - AERFEE - KFML 6/6
Mr Eugene Fung, SC? TBRERB A - BIRAEEMS N/A
Mr Wilson Fung RRELE 5/6
Mr Stephen Hung? RRIE(EEAES N/A
Ms Miranda Kwok® FOIMTS 2 +2 N/A
Ms Rosita Lee? e Thilieen N/A
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith? #RIKBA S 4/6
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP* BfEEE  REFEE - KF@Le 6/6
Mr David Stannard? RERE S A 4/6
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ERURAELE  MEFIEE - KTt 6/6
Ms Eirene Yeung B+ 5/6
Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) BEXw T KFat+ (BAKE) 6/6
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEQ) (ex-officio) B REA (1THBHER) (BRKE) 6/6

The average attendance rate at meetings was 86%.

1 Term expired on 14 December 2018.

2 Appointed as Chairman with effect from 15 December 2018.
3 Appointed with effect from 1 December 2018.

4 Term expired on 30 November 2018.
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Pursuant to the FRCO, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR may appoint
temporary members to the FRC to serve on a rotating basis with respect
to cases whereby the Council is not able to meet the statutory quorum in
relation to matters in which members had disclosed their interests. During
2018, the following persons were the temporary members of the FRC:

Mr Stephen Hung'

Mr Edward Kwan, MH
Ms Rosita Lee’

Mr Michael Scales

Ms Anna Wong?

1 Retired with effect from 1 December 2018 upon appointment as a Council
Member.
2 Re-appointed with effect from 1 December 2018.

The in-house General Counsel attends all Council meetings, and has been
appointed as the Secretary of the meetings. Minutes of meetings are
circulated to the Chairman for review and comment and then to all members
for comment. All members have access to the General Counsel.

Council Committees

The Council has five committees, the responsibilities of which are described
below. These committees meet as necessary on a periodic basis. Each
committee operates according to its own terms of reference. Information on
the number of meetings held and attendance rates are set out in the tables
below.

Each Committee has a majority of Council members and at least one
Honorary Advisor to ensure appropriate checks and balances across the
operations of the FRC. The Operations Oversight Committee also has other
members comprising lay persons, together with those with accounting
and auditing experience. Where authority can be delegated under the
FRCO, each committee is accountable to the Council for its decisions.
Where delegation is not permissible, each committee is accountable for its
recommendations to Council.

The terms of reference of each committee are reviewed from time to time in
light of working needs.
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CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
BEERw

Corporate Communications Committee (CCC)

Terms of reference

WRENRES
BRI

e To formulate corporate communications policies and strategies to increase .

publicity about the work of the FRC.

e To oversee the implementation of corporate communications strategies 3
approved by the Council, and to utilise appropriate communications tools,

such as press statements, publications, electronic communications,

conferences, to reach the media and external parties.

e Torecommend an annual promotion plan and budget to the Council.

and

e To oversee the review and updating of FRC website layouts and contents, .
printed brochures, promotional materials and other publications of the

FRC.

e To oversee publicity campaigns launched from time to time by the FRC. .

e To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Membership and attendance at CCC meetings in 2018 was as follows:

i TE S A BOR MRS - IR EE AR T
fE e

EEARBKE AN EBERRKORT AR
BERABENRE(NHER - Y EFBHAR
BRE) BEFEMINLESE -

MARKERIFES EFTERRAHE
EEFRARNBAERGRAR - MMiF  EF
AR R E M AR TI R R FEH -

EEARBTERRNE EED
AR B TR EEFHIRE

BEENEEER 2018 FHEH L EHKER HE

FUT
Meetings attended/held
SRHE BT
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (Chairman) BRFEREL  SHEMEE - K FHL(ERE) 5/5
Ms Ada Chung, JP EBBR Lt KFmt 4/5
Mr Michael Scales iR N =t 4/5
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP! B ELE  REFIEE - KP4t 3/5
Ms Eirene Yeung Bzt 5/5
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) s REE (TR (BAKE) 5/5
Average attendance rate IR 87%

" Term expired on 30 November 2018 (re-appointed with effect from 1 January 2019). !

THEAR 20184 11 A0 HfEm (R 2019F1 A1 AFE
ERERT) »

Finance Committee (FC) HREEE

B

Terms of reference

e To review the FRC’s treasury, internal control, and financial and risk e

management policies and strategies.

e To approve tenders for procurement with an estimated value exceeding .
HK$500,000 (other than legal services relating to vetting of investigation or

enquiry reports).

e To advise the FRC on the short, medium and long term financial o

implications of the Council’s strategic plans.

e To review and make recommendations to the FRC on the Council’s annual U

budget.

e  To review the FRC’s draft annual financial statements before submission to U

the Council.

e To provide advice on the future funding model of the FRC once the ®

independent audit oversight reform proposal is finalised.
e To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.
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Membership and attendance at FC meetings in 2018 was as follows:

BB ZEEER2018FHIEHLIEA SR EFWT

Meetings attended/held

SRLEBITRH
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP' (Chairman) \mAMEL  KF@HT(EF) 4/4
Mr Wilson Fung? ISR 2 3/4
Dr PM Kam HiExE L 2/4
Mr David Stannard?® GEERE A 3/4
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) BRI E (TTHAER) (BEAKE) 3/4
Average attendance rate FHHER 75%

Retired with effect from 1 December 2018. !
Term expired on 30 November 2018 (appointed as Chairman with effect from 1 2
January 2019).

Term expired on 30 November 2018 (re-appointed with effect from 1 January 2019). g

Independent Audit Oversight Reform Committee (IAORC)

Terms of reference

Membership and attendance at IAORC meetings in 2018 was as

To provide advice to the FRC and the staff on matters related to the reform O
of auditor oversight systems in Hong Kong (the Reform), including but

not limited to the registration, inspection, investigation and sanction of
auditors.

To oversee the work of FRC staff in relation to the Reform, including but U
not limited to the assumption of statutory powers for the inspection of
listed company auditors and the transition arrangements relating to audit
inspection and related legislative amendments; and to ensure that the
activities undertaken by the staff are in accordance with the directives of

the Council and the agreed timeline.

To receive and consider regular progress reports from the staff on the e
progress of the Reform.

To undertake specific tasks related to the Reform as required by the e
Council.

To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time. U

R20184 12 A 1 BEME »

FHR 20184 11 A30 BfEim (1R 2019461 A1 A%
ZERBERE) -

THAR 20184F 11 A30 HfEim (KR 2019F1 A1 AF
EREERT) °

B

HEBEMEENERE (ZRE)EE - 25A
TRAZEENETN - B  BERES @ A
PREETRHER -

EEABNETRZMEFRETOT  0EE
TRAEE SR LA ARREATRE -
FHERNBETH RABMIAE - % AR
B T B AR DR B 45 3 M e B R R T
e o

B R E B TRt R B IR A E HHE [

I==3P
RRARKENES - TR ERRNEET
fE -

AR E T RN EEEHIRE

BUFTEENEZESER 2018 FHEHHEL

follows: BRUEFEUT :
Meetings attended/held
SRHEBTRE
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP' (Chairman) EEREL - RFEE - KT (EFE) 4/4
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP? BXREEL - KFaLe 3/4
Mr Chew Fook Aun BARZEE 3/4
Mr Eugene Fung, SC ISEEMB I - BIRALERRD 2/4
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith? ERIKR S £ o 4/4
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP? BRI E  REFEE - KF#+3 4/4
Mr David Stannard? JERE S 4/4
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) FEESAE ((THER) (BAKE) 4/4
Average attendance rate FHH =R 87.5%

Term expired on 14 December 2018. !

Term expired on 30 November 2018 (appointed as Chairman with effect from 2
1 January 2019).
Term expired on 30 November 2018. e

Term expired on 30 November 2018 (re-appointed with effect from 1 January 2019). 2

EEIR 2018512 A 14 Bf@im °

FEAR 20184F 11 A30 Hf@m (MR 2019F1 A1 A%
ZHAEER) -

EER 20184 11 A30 BEm °

FEAR2018F 11 A30 BHfEm (K 2019F1 A1 AFH
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CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
wisER

Operations Oversight Committee (OOC)

Terms of reference

To formulate policies, strategies, guidelines and procedures for the

operation of the FRC.

To provide advice to the FRC and its operational staff on technical and
business issues.

To consider the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints and
reviews currently being dealt with by staff.

To consider enquiry reports approved by the Financial Reporting Review

Committees before submission to the Council.

To consider investigation reports approved by the Audit Investigation
Board before submission to the Council.

To consider recommendations in the complaint/review assessment reports

before submission to the Council, and to endorse those complaint/review

assessment reports requiring no follow-up action.
To consider and approve recommendations made in the review handling

reports in relation to financial statements selected for review under the

financial statements review programme.
To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

BiEsE

HIEARBHEMEBUR « KB - H5IFEFT ©

AARRMITEEBE N8 THRAERMIE R
BUEMESR -
BHETHERENSH
TEEESE ©
ERKUBERRSZ B AENERARS
MRRZRARKEEE °
*E%z?%%nﬁﬂéiﬂ SHENFERE - U2
REBREEE
%E%&Eﬁ/%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&iﬁﬁﬁmi%

HE R REH

" AR AR

AEKEAE - EHEFTEHEMRETHNR
& BHRHERE o

R REM SRR ERN A BB B RRN
BRI ETERES -

RABKE TRERTTNEEELIRE

Membership and attendance at OOC meetings in 2018 was as follows: (EEERZS SR 2018 FHISHEHIEAER HE
YT -
Meetings attended/held
SRLEBTRH
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman) HRURILAE  WERFES - KFML (E/F) 6/6
Mr Jamie Allen NERRE 4/6
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP BRFESEAE - REFIESE - AT+ 4/6
Ms Wilson Fung IHRIELSE 6/6
Mr Kenneth Morrison XiBEEE 4/6
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith’ #RJKRA A T 3/6
Mr Michael Scales' N e 4/6
Mr Stephen Taylor Stephen Taylor 5t 4 4/6
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) BRE RS A ((THER) (BEAKE) 6/6
Average attendance rate FHH R 76%

1

Term expired on 30 November 2018.

1

EEIR 2018411 A30 A fE@im °

Remuneration Committee (RC)

Terms of reference

To formulate remuneration policies, strategies, guidelines and
procedures for the operation of the FRC in accordance with all
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

To make recommendations to the FRC on staffing, remuneration and
employment policies and strategies including salary structure, terms
and conditions of employment, and staff fringe benefits.

To make recommendations on the annual pay adjustment and the
amount of variable compensation payable to individual staff members.
To make recommendations on the amount of variable compensation
payable to the CEO.

To decide on matters which may be delegated by the Council from
time to time.
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Membership and attendance at RC meetings in 2018 was as follows:

FHZEE SR 2018 F 12 % I EA B R 1 fEE
T

Meetings attended/held

SEHE BT
Dr John Poon, BBS, JP' (Chairman) HAEPEL  AEFES - KFEm+1(EF) 3/3
Mr Roger Best BRI L - KP4t 3/3
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith? BRIKER L A2 3/3
Ms Eirene Yeung tHikE 2+ 2/3
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (CEO) (ex-officio) &R 4 (178 4EE) (ERKE) 3/3
Average attendance rate 1 H i 93%

T Term expired on 14 December 2018.
2 Term expired on 30 November 2018 (re-appointed with effect from 1 January 2019).

Operations
Enquiry - Financial Reporting Review Panel and Committee

In cases where the FRC believes there may be non-compliance with
accounting requirements by a listed entity, the Council may appoint a
Financial Reporting Review Committee (FRRC) to conduct an enquiry. The
committee consists of a Panel Convenor as Chairman, and at least four
other members of the Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP).

Under the powers vested in it under section 43 of the FRCO, the FRRC
may require relevant persons to produce records and documents and
provide information and explanations for the purpose of an enquiry.

Members of the FRRP are appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
in consultation with the Council. As at 31 December 2018, the FRRP had
46 members, including 8 Convenors. They are appointed based on their
experience in accounting, auditing, finance, banking, law, administration,
or management. A list of FRRP members can be found in the section
“Membership of Board and Panels” of this annual report.

In 2018, the FRC dealt with two enquiry cases brought forward from
previous years and 2 cases initiated during the year. One enquiry case was
completed.

i EEIR 2018512 A 14 Bf@im °
2 {EHR 20184 11 A30H/Em (A 2019461 A1 HE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
BEERw

Investigation — Audit Investigation Board (AlIB)

The Council may direct the AIB to conduct investigations into possible
auditing or reporting irregularities by auditors of listed entities. Under the
powers vested in it under sections 25, 26, 27 and 28 of the FRCO, the AIB
may require relevant persons to produce records and documents, supply
information and provide explanations for the purpose of the investigation.

The CEO of the FRC is the ex-officio Chairman of the AIB. Other members of
the AIB, who are normally staff members of the FRC, are appointed by the
Council. A list of AIB members can be found in the section “Membership of
Board and Panels” of this annual report.

In 2018, the AIB dealt with 40 investigation cases brought forward from
previous years and 19 cases initiated during the year. It completed 16
investigation cases.

Internal Controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each
case from the moment investigations/enquiries commence.

The FRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to personnel
administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms are completed by Council members, committee members
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts are declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflect any such conflicts.

Code of Conduct

FRC staff members are required to adhere to our code of conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our code of conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection.
This includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of
their own and their spouse’s investments, and to notify any changes in their
portfolio.

The FRC’s code of conduct is reviewed and updated on a regular basis
to ensure that it remains consistent with the best practices currently being
applied across the areas in which the FRC operates.
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Communications with Stakeholders

The FRC actively communicates with stakeholders, including its funding
parties, the accounting and auditing profession, its regulatory counterparts,
and the general investing public.

The FRC publishes annual reports and eNews to keep the public informed
about the progress of its work and its development. Operations statistics
and press releases about completed cases are regularly posted on the FRC
website (www.frc.org.hk), which has recently been revamped to provide the
public a user-friendly way to search for updated information.

The FRC has also set up official pages on certain social media channels
to enable interested parties to connect with the FRC in a more interactive
manner.

Checks and Balances

Accountability and Audit

The FRC has adopted a strict audit process. The FRC’s annual budget must
be endorsed by the Council. The Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury then reviews and approves the FRC’s annual estimates of income
and expenditure.

The financial statements of the FRC are audited by the Government’s
Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury and tabled at the Legislative Council. The FRC
attends a meeting of the Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs and
presents a progress report annually.

Process Review Panel (PRP)

The FRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure
that individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions
and decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines.
The PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review,
together with suggestions for improvements, if any. Appointments to the
PRP are approved by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman

The Ombudsman also indirectly oversees the work of the FRC by dealing
with any public complaints regarding alleged maladministration made
against the FRC and its staff. The FRC did not receive any enquiries from the
Ombudsman in 2018.

Best Practice

While the FRC is not obliged to comply with any particular corporate
governance codes, it voluntarily complies with various principles and code
provisions where considered relevant.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BENE(FLIER

We currently have a complement of 27 staff in the FRC, comprising a strong  BIiSERBREAE27TRETL — X ABEAER
team of professionally qualified accountants with audit background, a legally — HEFHEELFEMER - —2AEEER LR —H
qualified in-house General Counsel and dedicated administrative staff. HITEFMBEHBTTIRABHEK -

The key management team is: FTEFBEROE

IIIIIIIIIU

| E N a

Front: Mr Paul F. Winkelmann, CEO, Ms Wincey Lam, Deputy CEO
(RiIHE) : g R AL (FTEEL) - MR L L (BIFTIRAREL)

Back (from left):  Mr Alfred Chan (General Counsel), Ms Florence Wong (Senior Director), Ms Teresa Au (Senior Director), Mr Chan Tak Shing (Senior Director)
BEE(ARL) - BRBEEA (REDERZER)  THEXL (SARATRE)  BERALT (SRATHEE)  RERELE (GREERE)
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Key Operations Statistics

FTEEFRHE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Pursuable complaints received
B AT BRAEHL A 33 46" 118# 126* 85*
Investigations initiated
FARRAAEHER 22 11 18 14 19
Investigations completed
TS ER 4 9 11 11 16
Enquiries initiated
FARRAEMAER 1 1 1 = 2
Enquiries completed
TEAE LAY EZR 1 - 1 = 1

# Includes 50, 101, 97 and 22 complaints in 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015
respectively, which appear to have come from the same source and were
directed at a single audit firm.

Complaints

BB 125

BIED RN 20184 ~ 20174 ~ 2016 5 K 2015
FRESRRAR—RL SR e ETT

#50%R ~ 101°R » 97 R R 22 R °

N Achievements

. since Investigations
establishment g:)mloleéted

L ERIILRA S 7E R

Enquiries
completed
5E R Z il

12-

B ERE 2018F K
200009
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)

BENEFOREw

Review of Complaints

Every complaint received is carefully evaluated prior to determining whether
to close the case or commence an investigation and/or an enquiry.

The FRC received 85 pursuable complaints in 2018. Of these, 3 related

EH R
AREEBNMBEEO SRR  WRERTHR
RUFARMBER B -

RBR2018F HEESS RAIRERF - B =F

to auditing or reporting irregularities and 4 related to non-compliance with  $ M B XERTETE  WRFRTER ST
accounting requirements. A further 78 complaints involved both auditing or  FHEE c BN 78RR SR ETXERTETAR
reporting irregularities and non-compliance with accounting requirements. TEREGTIREEE -

2018 2017
Complaints from the public RERREIEF 68 112
Complaints from listed entity RE LM EBOEF -
Complaints from the HKEX R BB TR ER 12 7
Complaints from the HKICPA KEBEGTAZHIRE 3 4
Complaints from the SFC REBEEHNIEHF 1 3
Complaints from Companies Registry KB 2 mlFE i & F R 1 -
Total HBET 85 126

The FRC handled the 14 complaints brought forward from the previous year,
along with the 85 pursuable complaints received during the year. At the end
of the year, 11 complaints were still being evaluated.

The FRC targets to complete its evaluation of complaints within 90 working
days from receipt. At 31st December, this target has been met.

ERREFAREIE 14 RN E—FERENRE - A
Ko 85 RN ANFEHEN R RARGF - BHEARFER
RBNAERM 11 R -

RBEAREEELFIOETERR B IZHIR K
SERREHSREVER c W12 A31 8 - ILEIZTDER -

2018 2017
Brought forward FYIEHFRHER 14 14
Pursuable complaints received BER ] IRES R 85 126
Completed with no follow-up action B mESE ZREMNER (43) (10)
Referred to specified enforcement HA FRERITEREMNER
agencies (36) (104)
Initiated investigation and/or enquiry ERAERSEANER 9) (12)
In progress at end of year FRIDEFEFPHER 11 14
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Review of complaints

LS
142 140
| |
128 126 o
57 60 88
H |
F
43 36
2014 2015 2016 2017
- Handled during the year ~{ll— Completed during the year
FRERIE FRE 5K

Source of pursuable complaints
A IR E IR EF A R

126

B Members of the public
NSV Ne=

[ ] Regulators
BT

] Lis&ei entities
EmER

M Both regulators and members of the public
FRREEERERARAL

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Of the pursuable complaints received, 50 (2017: 101) appear to have  HEZEEMN T RERFT - 505 (2017 F : 101
come from the same source and were directed at a single audit firm. R)FERER—RF - Wi HE—EEET -
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (ontinued)
EIE K E/ELIRE @

By also eliminating the anomalies created in 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 MR R R FHRIFEE R FIZE MR 2014 F ~ 2015
and 2018 mentioned in the chart on source of pursuable complaints,a %+ 2016% - 2017 E R 2018 FEE N EE BN -
different picture emerges. A BRERRIRN D MRS B ©

Source of pursuable complaints

A BRERFR AR

B Members of the public
/N YNan

[ ] Regulators
EEE

M Listed entities
EhEe

B =

B Both regulators and members of the public

RIEREEERBERRIRAL

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
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Size of accounting firms involved in complaints
B RBFHEFRIITHRE

126

W Big Four accounting firms
PN -l

B Medium-size accounting firms (with six or more
partners/directors)
oG E T
(AERBHALEMERAES)

B Small-size accounting firms (with five or less
partners/directors)
NI EETETT

(BRESNTHEBAEF)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

By also eliminating the anomalies created in 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 BRI AT RERFHIRRE R PIREINHM 2014 F -
and 2018 mentioned in the chart on source of pursuable complaints, 20154 - 2016 + 2017 £ R 2018 FEEMEE
once again a different picture emerges. N S RBRFRNETETHREN D HNEFRD 5

Size of accounting firms involved in complaints
W RIRFFH S FH T AR

B Big Four accounting firms
LN eI

B Medium-size accounting firms (with six or more
partners/directors)
FEI S THRNTT
(BRBHAENERAN EF)

B Small-size accounting firms (with five or less
partners/directors)
NV EHRRTT

(BRESATHEBAESF)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

MBERE 201858 | 39
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)

BENEFOREw

Investigations

The FRC handled 40 investigations brought forward from 2017 and initiated
19 investigations in 2018. In total, 16 investigations were completed and the
investigation reports have been referred to the HKICPA who will determine
whether any disciplinary or other action is warranted. A summary of the
findings from the investigations completed in 2018 can be found on pages
36 to 40 of this annual report.

During the year, the HKICPA’s disciplinary committees took disciplinary
action in response to 13 investigations completed and referred to it by
the FRC in earlier years. The certified public accountants and corporate
practices involved in these cases were reprimanded and ordered to pay
penalties and costs.

At the end of the year, there were 43 investigations (2017: 40) in progress. In
2018, we focused on the longer outstanding cases and at the year end only
3 cases exist which originated from prior to 2016. These are complicated
cases involving multiple years’ audits and multiple auditors. The increase
in the number of outstanding cases in 2018 was due to our focus to
resolve complaints in accordance with our target of 90 working days, and
the significant increase in investigations initiated during the year. At year
end, the average age of outstanding investigations is within our target of
approximately 2 years.
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The outstanding investigations include those where we await finalisation {HEFEFHNAZEERBAEFEABEFBHBEE
of the Memorandum of Understanding with the Ministry of Finance. In the  Rf#E SR ESR - B A1 RAOEISFERR R
meantime, we have not pursued these investigations and will not do so until ~ WIFt TEERBMNLHEER > TAREZSERE
there is an arrangement on gaining access to audit working papers in the 1732 ©

Mainland.

2018 2017
In progress at beginning of year FURAEFHREE 40 37
Initiated in the year FRRMBAEMEZE 19 14
Handled during the year FRERIE R EZ 59 51
Completed B2 5K (16) (11)
In progress at end of year FRIDEFAEFHEZR 43 40

Progress of investigation cases

AEERNER
59
48 al -
|
39 L
32 u
|
16
9 11 11 — ]
4 i —I .
r—
2014 2015 2016 2017
- Handled during the year +Comp|eteq during the year
(including those not being actively pursued) FANETEK
FREEEE

(B EEEETRAENER)
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (ontinueq)

EIE K E/ELIRE @

Key issues and findings in completed investigations

The major audit deficiency identified continues to be the failure of auditors  ABERZEENEEZHENATFEATEEN S

to identify inappropriate accounting treatments by companies. This
indicates that the auditors had not performed appropriate audit procedures

or properly evaluated the evidence to support the accounting treatments st TN FEEF{E RN 2 EIE S A ¢
proposed by the management in respect of the following areas:

B Revenue and construction contracts
WAREEER

M Financial instruments
SRTA

I Impairment of financial/non-financial assets
Tl / IEeREERE

Il Accounting for subsidiaries/associates (new category in 2018)
B AR /B R AR TR (2018 FRIFTERA)

M Business combinations
EESH

1 Valuations
(=]

M Disclosure deficiencies
BETR

M Share-based payment
M fn =22 5

H Capitalisation of expenses
X HEARE

M Genuiness of expenses
FX B RN

M Rights to purchase of assets
BEEERE

M Going concern
FHEK
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Enquiries B
The FRC brought forward two enquiries from last year. RBRER EFRNEEHAHMREMESE -

Each enquiry is handled by a Financial Reporting Review Committee with S FREAERHFHKESRHB T ZEERARE T —
support from staff of the FRC. The time taken to complete an enquiry [ERE - Tk —FE M AEMEENRERTESR

depends on the circumstances and complexity of individual cases. ARME R KA IEME

2018 2017
In progress at beginning of year FNEAFHEZ 2 2
Initiated in the year FARMAEMNEZR 2 -
Handled during the year FREEREZR 4 2
Completed e E A EZ (1) -
In progress at end of year FRIDEEMPHOEZE 3 2

Progress of enquiry cases

B ERNER

4
|
3
O
2 2 2
| n |
1 1 1
0 0
2014 2015 2016 2017
- Handled during the year = Completed during the year
FRERE FAE K
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continueq)

BENEFOREw

Summary of completed investigations

In 2018 the FRC completed 16 audit investigations. The investigation
results findings provide cause for concern in that the audit areas relating
to the findings continue to be those identified in prior years — namely
the audits of impairments, accounting estimates, revenue and financial
instruments classifications and valuations. In particular, we noted the
lack of professional scepticism in the performance of audits. There were
situations where auditors placed excessive or sometimes unquestioned
reliance on management’s representations and/or other expert’s reports
without adequately performing procedures to evaluate the relevance and
reasonableness of the methodology and approach applied, the source data
used in estimations and assumptions made by management.

In many cases, the investigation also revealed that engagement quality
control reviewers failed to identify significant audit deficiencies. The
purpose of an engagement quality control review in an audit is to serve
as a meaningful check on the work performed and decisions made by
an engagement team. The weakness identified in engagement quality
reviews may have been caused by (a) over-reliance on review checklists;
(b) the absence of a critical review of the working papers and the support
for significant judgements made by the audit team; and (c) a failure to
adequately challenge the decisions made and document the challenges
made and the basis on which the issues were resolved.

The following is a brief summary of some of the investigation findings:

Auditing accounting estimates

1. A listed entity recognised a general provision for inventory
obsolescence with reference to an ageing analysis of the inventories
at the year-end. The auditor’s procedures on this provision
were principally limited to the re-performance of management’s
calculations without a comprehensive understanding of the
procedures and method used by management together with
considering the appropriateness of the provision policy in assessing
the reasonableness of the relevant accounting estimate. It was
also found that the auditor failed to (a) properly perform sampling
tests on the measurement of the inventories; (b) appropriately
project misstatements found in the sample to a population; and (c)
adequately test and appropriately follow-up the result of the test on
the estimation of the net realisable value of the inventory. This is a
good example where an enquiring mindset would have identified the
misstatement in the financial statements.

Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2018
L L

ExANAERERERE

R2018FARE K I6RENHE - FEHERHE
B ERBINEEEMEARFENAER - 8
HRE  SEEEF - WARER I AN BRMGE
BEs o BHMFRDERE - RBENAER TIEP R

EEMIBEREE - —LERET V%(Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ“i
ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ&?ﬁ BENRL R, ZEME
MRS MRERD ﬁ{TﬁﬁXaﬂEﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ]L
CREEMENAEYE  RARNEEEGRELRRA
BIBHR °

EFZERT  HAEEERBAEASENEZAR
REBHEENETTRERN - BAAEERHER
B ERYUFHERN TEXRERAENRERER
BEENRE - MERAEEEEZTENT T A
R TIREREE : (a) BEKBESLFE : (b)HE
FtE X B9 T4 ST N AT 0 B2 ROR TE O SRR IR IR R
zﬁt#l HEE  R(C)RBHMAMEREREFEDE
 WABPTHR HE 5 M AR R ERE R

FErTE b

1. LHERBSZEFMNREDIN  RERE
ERBETFEN—REE - LB B
BEETHEFIERRENATEERE
MEtE - MEA2EEEEEEMERD
R NIE  LEFGEBETHETNS
BEMREERBERRNEEE HAEER
BRBENR A EEHFENTEE
TTHRIERE ¢ (b )‘**E"‘imﬂ%ﬁff%ﬂtﬂ?"fiﬁ’]ﬁﬁ
R RRBERE  R(CO)FREMNAE
BFEM G }Emﬂﬂ%‘it&ﬂ;?ﬁiiﬁxﬂﬂﬁ
RER o B — ARG 7 5B 5 R BLED
BEARFTORE  KEEBRMBERRTAOH
o



A listed entity recognised revenue relating to variations in contract
work and claims in its financial statements when there was a lack of
evidence that the relevant amounts could be reliably measured. The
investigation revealed that the auditor’s procedures were inadequate
and substantially relied on management’s representations on the
outcome and amounts relating to variations and claims. It was found
that the auditor’s procedures could not provide sufficient appropriate
evidence to support the recognition and measurement of contract
revenue in the relevant financial statements.

In relation to a construction contract, another investigation
revealed that the auditor failed to design and perform appropriate
audit procedures to test the relevant transaction and challenge
management’s contention on the progress of the construction
and the justification for not recognising any contract revenue and
contract cost in profit or loss over two financial years.

A listed entity omitted to recognise certain consultancy fee relating
to a property development project. The error was retrospectively
adjusted in the subsequent financial statements and the entire
amount of consultancy fee was capitalised as part of the
construction costs. The investigation found that the auditor relied
on management’s representation without inspecting the underlying
agreement and other supporting evidence which resulted in an
undetected understatement of liabilities. In the subsequent year,
it was found that the auditor failed to question management as to
whether the capitalisation of the consultancy fee was in compliance
with the relevant accounting requirement. The investigation also
revealed that the auditor substantially relied on management’s
representation and failed to sufficiently evaluate the recoverability
of a receivable and the disclosure of a possible related party
transaction and balances.

In a case where there were inconsistencies in audit evidence
obtained which might affect the accounting for a business
combination, in particular the recognition and measurement of
goodwill, the investigation revealed that the auditor failed to properly
perform procedures to resolve the inconsistencies. The auditor
also failed to properly evaluate whether the evidence that they had
obtained in the prior year’s audit was of continuing relevance.
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A listed entity amortised an intangible asset acquired in an
acquisition over the remaining short term contractual period of
several months. For the purpose of impairment assessment, the
listed entity used cash flow projections over a significantly longer
period to determine the recoverable amount of the intangible asset.
The investigation found that the auditor failed to adequately perform
procedures, including the consideration of relevant contractual
terms, management’s plans, expectations and assumptions,
and events after the end of the reporting period, to assess the
reasonableness of the amortisation period. The auditor also failed to
sufficiently document details of the nature and extent of their audit
procedures.

In another investigation we found that the auditor failed to critically
evaluate and challenge management on the reasonableness of the
forecast period, the expected timing of production and sales, and
the volume and pricing of the expected transactions in determining
the recoverable amounts of certain rights and related goodwill for
the purpose of year-end impairment assessment, given that the then
market condition was unfavorable and, consistent with earlier years,
the production operations had been suspended for a prolonged
period of time.

Revenue

In a situation where the auditor identified that the making of cut-off
adjustments in relation to sales of goods was one of the significant
accounting and auditing issues, it was found that the auditor
failed to (a) properly assess the risks of material misstatement in
revenue recognition; (b) address the potential risk on inappropriate
recognition of revenue from sales of goods; and (c) properly evaluate
and consider additional procedures in relation to exceptions
identified in the substantive tests.

A listed entity failed to properly recognise the sales proceeds of
the unutilised portions of prepaid service contracts as deferred
revenue. Two separate investigations found that the auditors failed to
properly consider the substance of the contractual arrangements in
planning and performing audit procedures to test the prepaid service
contracts to ensure the recognition of revenue was in compliance
with the applicable accounting requirements.
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A listed entity recognised a very significant trading transaction in
a financial year with a single and new customer. The investigation
revealed that the auditor failed to (a) maintain a questioning mind
to critically assess the evidence obtained, (b) properly assess the
risks of material misstatements in relation to the transaction and
plan the audit accordingly, (c) properly perform various substantive
procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in relation
to the transaction, the customer, the supplier and relevant accounts
balance, and (d) discuss the relevant transaction with those charge
with governance.

In another audit, although the auditor identified revenue recognition
from retail sales as one of the significant accounting and auditing
issues, the investigation found that the auditor failed to properly
design and perform audit procedures to address the assessed risks.
The auditor also failed to understand the nature and causes of the
identified errors, consider extending the tests, including the effects
on opening balance and comparatives, and ascertain whether the
adjustments to the relevant financial statements were appropriately
determined.

Financial instruments

A listed entity reclassified part of its quoted investment portfolio
from “fair value through profit or loss” category to available-for-sale
investment. The accounting standards allow such reclassification
only under rare circumstances and impose additional disclosure
requirements when such reclassification takes place. Our findings
demonstrated that the auditor failed to (a) actively challenge
management regarding the basis for the reclassification; (b) properly
analyse whether “rare circumstances” existed, and carry out a
proper evaluation of the appropriateness of the reclassification,
supported by reliable audit evidence; and (c) identify that the
financial statements omitted the required disclosures in relation to
the reclassification. These findings are particularly disappointing as
there is an enormous amount of technical guidance on this matter
available including clarification by IASB.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (ontinueq)
BEREFEE@

A listed entity issued convertible notes to settle an amount due to
a director who was also a substantial shareholder. The convertible
notes were recognised in equity and measured at the amount
due to the director recorded. The investigation discovered that
the auditor failed to (a) properly plan and assess the risks of
material misstatement relating to the accounting treatment of the
transaction; (b) document their evaluation on the appropriateness
of the classification of the convertible notes; (c) perform adequate
procedures on the initial measurement of the convertible notes; and
(d) question the appropriateness of the accounting treatment of the
transaction.

A listed entity’s wholly owned subsidiary issued a number of
preferred shares which resulted in a deemed disposal with the listed
entity’s interest being reduced to less than 50%. The listed entity
continued to account for the investee as a subsidiary. The terms
of the preferred shares included specific events and conditions
that might trigger the repayment of the principal amount of the
preferred shares and accrued dividends, and required the consent
of the holders of the preferred shares on a number of matters. The
investigation found that the auditor failed to properly consider the
substance of the contractual arrangements, definitions of financial
liability and equity in accordance with the relevant accounting
standard and the impact of the rights provided to the holders of
the preferred shares on the Group’s ability to control the investee
following the deemed disposal.
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Other findings Hith3 31

1.

A listed entity granted share options to certain directors and
staff and recognised the entire amount of services, measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted in the
financial statements as an expense rather than recognising the share
options expense over the one-year vesting period which was non-
compliance with HKFRS 2. The investigation found that the auditor
failed to properly evaluate the effect of the uncorrected misstatement
relating to the recognition of share option expense, which individually
exceeded the materiality level determined by the auditor for the
relevant audit.
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Recommended Improvements

When evaluating complaints or reviewing financial statements, the FRC may
decide that while the complaint or review does not warrant being taken
further to an investigation or enquiry, it is appropriate to write to the listed
entities and their auditors highlighting certain issues for their attention and
suggesting improvement measures. The following findings gave rise to such
letters in 2018:

1. HKFRS 13 categorises the inputs used in the measurement of fair
value into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date. In relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties with reference to recent
market transactions of similar properties in the same location,
the inputs used would not meet the criteria and should not be
categorised under Level 1 fair value hierarchy for financial reporting.

2. Inrespect of fair value measurements categorised within Level 2 and
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy under HKFRS 13, i.e. observable
inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 and unobservable inputs
respectively, preparers of financial statements are reminded to
provide descriptions of the valuation techniques and inputs used
in the valuations. Besides, when there is a change in the valuation
technique adopted, the preparer is required to disclose that fact and
the reason for such change.

3. When management is aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which might cast significant doubt on the
reporting entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, relevant
and adequate disclosures should be made on those uncertainties
and the management’s plans to deal with these events or conditions
and such disclosures should be within the discussion on the going
concern basis of preparation rather than in another section of the
financial statements.

4. Preparers of financial statements are reminded to correctly disclose
the measurement bases of relevant financial statement items as
these bases would affect the readers’ analysis and understanding of
the judgements exercised in preparing the financial statements.

5.  Preparers of financial statements are reminded that the par value per
share or the fact that the shares have no par value are required to be
disclosed under HKAS 1.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
B EERRE

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council
set out on pages 45 to 57, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including significant
accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 31 December 2018,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Financial Reporting Council
in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Other information

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the
Financial Reporting Council’s 2018 Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon.
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My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Financial Reporting Council
for the financial statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and section 18(2) of
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Financial Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Financial Reporting Council
is responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

The Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance Committee
in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Audit Commission auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT (continued)

ETBERBT®

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Financial Reporting Council;

— conclude on the appropriateness of the Financial Reporting Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Financial Reporting Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Financial Reporting Council to cease to
continue as a going concern; and

— evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Kenneth Ho Audit Commission
Assistant Director of Audit 26th Floor
for Director of Audit Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road
6 March 2019 Wanchai, Hong Kong
44 Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2018
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUpiE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mE AR

HE2018F 12 A1 HILEFE

(ZREABTTIIR)

Note
ks 2018 2017
Income WA
Annual contribution BEBRAES 4 32,367,196 30,825,900
Interest income F B U A 5 787,030 596,414
Recovery of costs of investigations FHEK AW 5 742,951 159,628
33,897,177 31,581,942
Expenditure o]
Staff costs 8T 6 (31,829,961) (25,409,620)
Audit oversight research and FHITEEHER
related expenses islez (103,990) (413,560)
Corporate communications expenses — #iEE L 7 (1,204,681) (1,045,403)
Legal and professional fees EERBEER (895,023) (1,851,375)
Depreciation charge WEZH 10 (349,574) (255,598)
Other operating expenses Hh&E H 8 (814,474) (752,238)
(35,197,703) (29,727,794
(Deficit)/surplus and total (B BBRRAGRERA
comprehensive income
for the year (1,300,526) 1,854,148

The notes on pages 49 to 57 form part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

B A& ¥R 3% om0

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B AEAR S 3%
M2018F 12 A 31 H
(EAETTHIR)

Note
s 2018 2017
Non-current assets FRBEE
Office furniture, fixtures and WAERA KB
equipment B 10 680,176 279,646
Current assets RBEE
Receivables and prepayments FEUT AR FR KR TR 3RIE 11 833,120 594,755
Time deposits with original REEBAAZHR=EAH
maturities over three months TEBTFRK 12 38,000,000 38,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekEeEEY 13 6,586,060 7,753,247
Total current assets FREEEAE 45,419,180 46,348,002
Current liabilities pEI=RE
Accounts payable and accruals ERERF R EET B R (4,113,047) (3,340,813)
Net current assets HREEEFE 41,306,133 43,007,189
Net assets EEFE 41,986,309 43,286,835
Funds =1
General fund —RES 14 21,986,309 23,286,835
Reserve fund T 14 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total funds mEE 41,986,309 43,286,835

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 6 March 2019 20194 3 A 6 BEMEER BHLE L ISHE Tz

fod Rtk

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann  #i#R %4
Chief Executive Officer  7TIB(#2#t

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP  EX#EL » KF#HL

Chairman /&

F49BE 57 EMMERATBREKRN—#D

The notes on pages 49 to 57 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ey TIES
HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE
(£FUETTIIR)

General fund Reserve fund Total funds

—RES f#Ee wES

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 21,432,687 20,000,000 41,432,687
Surplus and total comprehensive 2017 & KR AR A

income for 2017 WA 1,854,148 - 1,854,148

At 31 December 2017 H2017F12 A31 H 23,286,835 20,000,000 43,286,835

At 1 January 2018 H2018F1 A1H 23,286,835 20,000,000 43,286,835
Deficit and total comprehensive 2018 F Al R BERE

income for 2018 WA (1,300,526) - (1,300,526)

At 31 December 2018 7201812831 H 21,986,309 20,000,000 41,986,309

The notes on pages 49 to 57 form part of these financial statements. FL9BES7 BRI AR BHREH—ED -
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS WERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F 12 A31HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (£BLBTTYIR)
Note
ik 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities K& EHEENRESRE

(Deficit)/surplus for the year FAN (B4 B (1,300,526) 1,854,148
Adjustments for: FERIFE :
Depreciation charge e 349,574 255,598
Interest income FEHA (787,030) (596,414)
Loss on disposal of office furniture, BEENRANERE HER
fixtures and equipment KRR 7,242 -
(1,730,740) 1,513,332
Changes in working capital: BEELEE
Increase in receivables JRE LR B 3R R TR 3R
and prepayments )i (93,251) (63,672)
Increase in accounts payable e R R ERTE A
and accruals 0 772,234 641,634
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KETEHELENERES
operating activities Gl RAFEE (1,051,757) 2,091,294

Cash flows from investing activities RETFHELENRESRE

Payment for the purchase of office E%E\#}J#’\ﬁ'f%ﬁ- RKER
furniture, fixtures and equipment BAEOE (757,346) (95,100)

Interest received BUYF 8 641,916 883,753
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REZBEENERS

investing activities GRHE) /SRR (1154300 788,653
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BHeRBRESEEYWCRD)

and cash equivalents HHNFER (1,167,187) 2,879,947
Cash and cash equivalents M1A1BZRERASEEY

at 1 January 7,753,247 4,873,300
Cash and cash equivalents R12ANAZREeRREE

at 31 December B 13 6,586,060 7,753,247
The notes on pages 49 to 57 form part of these financial statements. F49BEZE 57 BN ARIEHRENH—H o

48 Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(GY)

(b)

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong Kong
in 2006 under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588)
(FRCO). Its office address is 29th Floor, High Block, Queensway
Government Offices, 66 Queensway, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

As set out in the FRCO, the FRC is empowered to conduct
investigations concerning auditing and reporting irregularities by
auditors of entities listed in Hong Kong, and to make enquiries into
non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed entities in
Hong Kong.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of Financial Statements
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. There are no critical accounting judgements involved
in the application of IFRSs by the FRC. There are also no key
assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the next year.

R ERAR M RE

HZE2018F 12 A31 HILFE
(£FUETTIIR)

(@)

(b)
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B o
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(©

Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

The following IFRSs became effective in 2018 and have been adopted
by the FRC:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised in July 2014)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The adoption of the above IFRSs does not have any impact on
the results or financial position for the current and prior periods
presented.

The FRC has not applied any new or revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Based on the assessment
undertaken to date, their adoption will not have any significant
financial impact on the FRC’s financial statements.

Annual Contribution

The annual contribution is the principal source of revenue, which is
unconditional and non-refundable. It is measured at the fair value
of consideration received or receivable and is recognised when it
becomes receivable.

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (CRTF), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Securities
and Futures Commission (SFC) and the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEX) signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) regarding the funding arrangements of the FRC up to and
including the 2019 financial year. Each party agreed to contribute an
annual amount of $8.1 million to the FRC in 2018 (2017: $7.7 million)
for the recurring expenditure. To cater for inflation adjustments and
to provide greater certainty to the FRC, the annual contribution from
each party shall be increased to approximately $8.5 million for 2019.

The office premises of the FRC are provided by the CRTF at a nominal
rent of $1 per annum. All the related utility and sewage charges,
outgoings, costs and expenses incurred in repairing, maintaining and
managing the office premises are borne by the CRTF.
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5.

Interest Income and Recovery of Costs of

Investigations

Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method.

Recovery of costs of investigations are recognised once the decision
of the HKICPA'’s Disciplinary Committee becomes finalised.

.{ _|' |..,F_15| 4 .;1|_- -.
MEWRARBAERAWE

FEWAR S ERERRFEETR - F B
ANRAERNEEIRERT EEMRER -

BRSFHMASE THLAZESNRE—
RHEE - BRI S PR o

Staff Costs BT RA

2018 2017
Salaries, variable pay, bonuses N - F B -

and gratuities TEARES 29,521,212 23,207,359
MPF contributions SR HIM AR SR 1,221,854 845,031
Staff recruitment expenses HEEIZH 53,050 512,353
Medical and life insurance BEMAZRE 631,764 516,235
Staff training and development B TEIIRFREER 195,881 136,607
Others HAith 206,200 192,035
31,829,961 25,409,620

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses, gratuities and paid annual leave are
accrued in the period in which the employees rendered the associated
services. Bonuses are recognised when the FRC has a present legal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made based
on 5 percent of the employees’ gross salaries, except for the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) for whom only mandatory contributions are
made. The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from those
of the FRC in an independently administered fund. The employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme, except for the employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the FRC when the employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully.

HM - FBBE - B B RAFERR
B TIRHAER RS HIARER - MEABEER
i AE TIRES B IEAL R R R E R -
VAR P & RRBE S F] SEMD (AR - S RERRIE
ALER -

EEBRHERBMZERFIEESBIMH
R HRERBRHARRBEER S
H oo BT EREER RS HREOTTRAEE
oh - R TNIRERRHFMONB D 2 HFTE -
BEIEAEDF BN EERTBERRNE
ENRRBAE  UHMBIEENESRE B
THFRZA TR DB R EIR 28
EBEBRESH I - EEEMEREIEEH
B EREBAREZFEZEELSNEARERD
BRT - AEREISE RS
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6. Staff Costs (continued) 6. EIRA(E)
Except for the CEO, Council members are not remunerated. The MRITEUEE SN - BIFSERBK E W EMS -
above staff costs included the emoluments of the CEO as stated M FEIRAD BIE T TEHERNE
below:
2018
Salary and MPF
variable pay contributions Total
&
SR EEME NESMHIA wzE
Paul F. Winkelmann EER 4,158,000 18,000 4,176,000
2017
Salaries and MPF
variable pay contributions Total
o il 1
N2 BB S NESHK 4R
Paul F. Winkelmann BIER 4,200,000 18,000 4,218,000
7. Corporate Communications Expenses 7. HWEBERXE
2018 2017
Promotion and public education WERAEHE 841,568 468,669
Events JEED 33,111 309,940
Publications AR 151,907 149,798
Others Hit 178,095 116,996
1,204,681 1,045,403
8. Other Operating Expenses 8. Hitt&E&EXH
2018 2017
Conferences and duty visits CENERER 107,900 59,279
Professional liability insurance BEETRE 25,155 25,150
Office equipment and furniture expensed WAERERRERE 74,936 105,556
Printing, stationery and office expenses TED » XA RBAERE 606,483 562,253
814,474 752,238
In accordance with section 19 of the FRCO, the financial statements RIBCATSERBIEHINE 1915 - BIISIERD
of the FRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for W B HRkBEETEERAEER BRI
this service. I ARGE A -
52 Financial Reporting Council Annual Report 2018



10.

Taxation

9.

Pursuant to section 16 of the FRCO, the FRC is exempt from taxation
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

Office Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

BiIE

RIBCR TS E SR BIED)DFE 1615 - MIFERR
E#RemEARB(HRBED) (F1125)#

i o

10. R ZEERE - RERRE

Office
furniture Other
and office
fixtures Computers equipment Total
WAE Hth
REAREER Bl WAERE wxg
Cost 27N
At 1 January 2017 M2017%F1 A1H 507,074 592,110 149,141 1,248,325
Additions BA 93,300 70,100 - 163,400
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12 A31H 600,374 662,210 149,141 1,411,725
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 A1 H 600,374 662,210 149,141 1,411,725
Additions A - 687,356 69,990 757,346
Disposals BE - - (65,300) (55,300)
At 31 December 2018 201812831 H 600,374 1,349,566 163,831 2,113,771
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HifE
At 1 January 2017 H2017%F1A1H (269,091) (632,220) (75,170) (876,481)
Charge for the year FARAZH (200,106) (38,914) (16,578) (255,598)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12 A31 H (469,197) (671,134) (91,748) (1,132,079)
At 1 January 2018 7201841 A1H 469,197)  (571,134) (91,748)  (1,132,079)
Charge for the year FAZH (125,182) (205,779) (18,613) (349,574)
Written back on disposals e B RO - - 48,058 48,058
At 31 December 2018 A2018F 12 8318 (594,379)  (776,913) (62,303) (1,433,595)
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12H31 H 5,995 572,653 101,528 680,176
At 31 December 2017 R2017412 A31H 131,177 91,076 57,393 279,646
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10. Office Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

(continued)

Office furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that
items costing less than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost
of an item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment over its
estimated useful life after considering its estimated residual value. The
respective useful lives are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 1to 10 years
Computers 3 years
Other office equipment 7 years

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting
period.

An item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or
deficit in the period in which the asset is derecognised.

At the end of each reporting period, the FRC assesses whether there
is any indication that an item of office furniture, fixtures and equipment
may be impaired or a previously recognised impairment loss no
longer exists or may have decreased. Following this year’s review, no
impairment loss has been recognised (2017: nil).
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11. Receivables and Prepayments 1. BUERF R FEI FRIE
2018 2017
Interest receivable FEYLF B 264,619 119,505
Prepayments AT RUR
- Medical and life insurance — BB R ASRR 359,150 314,796
— Staff benefits —BI®&H 4,000 27,147
— Professional liability insurance —EXHTRE 13,595 13,589
- Others —HAh 191,756 119,718
833,120 594,755
12. Time Deposits with Original Maturities Over 12. REHBEZHR=EANERF
Three Months EN
Time deposits with original maturities over three months carried fixed REBAZR=(EABNESRER - REEF
interest rates ranging from 2.06% to 2.40% (2017: 0.88% to 1.42%) FEH2.06EZE2.40F:H 8 (20174 : 0.88
per annum. The balances outstanding at 31 December 2018 and EE1.42]E) - 20184 & 2017 F 12 A 31
2017 had maturities less than 12 months from the end of the reporting AR &SR IRE BFHAR 128 AR EHE -
period.
13. Cash and Cash Equivalents 13. RERIREEZEY
2018 2017
Cash on hand FHERS 4,899 2,374
Current accounts T EEHRER 487,315 501,532
Savings account HEER 6,093,846 849,341
Time deposits with original maturities [REIEAR BB =18 A
within three months Y 7E BT 3R - 6,400,000
6,586,060 7,753,247
14. Funds 14. 8%
General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent —RESNEVKERBRLEEEESHEE
funding. Bk -

Reserve fund represents the non-recurrent contributions received
from the CRTF, the HKICPA, the SFC and the HKEX at the
establishment of the FRC according to the MoU. Each party
contributed a lump-sum amount of $5 million which is not refundable.
The reserve fund is to be deployed to meet any inadequacies of the
recurrent funding and other exigencies of circumstances.

RESERAREMELEES - BB
NE - FEGRBXRIBREE SN E
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15. Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as
follows:

15. €T B

ERERMTANERmSEN T

2018 2017

Financial assets EMEE
Interest receivable FEUFI B 264,619 119,505

Time deposits with original maturities [REIEAA BB =8 A/

over three months TEHITFER 38,000,000 38,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEED 6,586,060 7,753,247
44,850,679 45,872,752

Financial liabilities eRAafs
Accounts payable and accruals JERBRR L BT E A 4,113,047 3,340,813

The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate to their fair values as at 31 December 2018 and
2017.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. No transaction costs have been incurred.

Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The recognition of a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortised
cost is based on the probability of default upon initial recognition and
on-going assessment of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. No impairment loss has been recognised in 2018 (2017:
nil).

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.
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16.

(@)

(b)

(c)

17.

Financial Risks
Credit risk

The FRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable,
time deposits and other bank balances.

The recovery of the investigation costs is closely monitored by
the Council. Receivables from recovery of investigation costs are
assessed for recoverability on an individual basis based on the
probability of default upon initial recognition. On-going assessment is
performed to determine whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. The FRC does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

The Council approved an investment policy which, subject to other
limits, only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in
Hong Kong having regard to their credit rating. The policy also limits
the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance
Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Council. As a result, the FRC
is not exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets
as set out in the statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low level
of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash
equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities were due to be
repaid within three months (2017: three months) from the end of the
reporting period.

Market risk

Currency risk

The FRC receives its funding and settles its expenses in Hong Kong
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC is not exposed to any currency
risk.

Interest rate risk

The FRC’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in
time deposits with fixed interest rates. The FRC is subject to interest
rate risk where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having
several short term deposits.

Event After the Reporting Period

On 30 January 2019, the FRC (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 was
enacted, which changes the role of the FRC. The FRC’s operating
expenditure is estimated to be no less than $100 million per annum
after the commencement of operation of the Ordinance.

16.

(a)

(b)

(©)

17.
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS
ZEEREEEKE

Honorary Advisory Panel
ZEER

The function of the Honorary Advisors is to advise the FRC, including its committees and staff, with
respect to any matter referred to the Honorary Advisors by the FRC. Currently, the Panel comprises
highly respected individuals from different sectors encompassing accounting, auditing, business and
legal. By leveraging on their wealth of experience, the FRC has been able to grow from strength to
strength.

ZEEFRBERTTHMBERBSENNFR  AMKERR(BREEZEEMET)RHER - &
R ZBEMEGKEREEE T AEMERSTRAROESBEZANX - BREMMASENE
5% - MBERBEHTEES - HISEL -

Panel Members During 2018
2018 FREREIE K B

Mr Roger Best, JP

BOMALE » KFEML

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a former President of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). He has chaired the HKICPA Financial Reporting Standards
Committee and has also been a member of the IFRS Advisory Council.

E%iﬁi%%ﬂ?ﬁi&ﬁéﬂ BERFGHMITHNABA  YARABEEGHAASER - SREEMBHRE 2R
ZEEER  MEIEEIBREENBEMEZESHKE -

Mr Clement Chan

BREREC B

Mr Chan is the Managing Director — Assurance of BDO Limited and is a former President of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has actively participated in standard setting and governance
activities both in Hong Kong and at international level. He is also a former Chair of the Asian-Oceanian
Standard Setters Group.

REERBEULEEZGHMEBHERIAFTHEFTALRE - MARRMNELEGHA TSR XHERK
SEFBNBEBERNHIEERRE QR  htb SEETMRAFMEET? &E'J%UEH%T%%EEJ% °

Dr Moses Cheng, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP'

BREEL  KEAPE  SXFAERF  ZFXEELEYE - KAFHL

Dr Cheng is currently the Chairman of the Insurance Authority. He is also a consultant of PC Woo & Co. after
serving as its Senior Partner for 21 years. He has extensive experience in listing matters.

éﬁTﬁim1%l‘ﬁ¥ﬁ*A%EF&Eﬂﬁ RENEHEFAMERERE - B EZFINERABARL -+ —F  XHEEL
MEHLHEASENLER -
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Mr Chew Fook Aun

BREEE

Mr Chew has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance in the United Kingdom and
Hong Kong. He is currently the Deputy Chairman and Executive Director of Lai Sun Garment (International)
Limited and Lai Sun Development Company Limited, the Executive Director of eSun Holdings Limited, and the
Chairman and Executive Director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited.

AEEHEREMEBHABIOFNEH B ReRER  BRABFEXBEEERAREBHERAR AT
MEBEIZERATES  SREBERERARNHTEELELERERARANEERNTES

Mr Eugene Fung, SC?

IEREESLE » ERAEM

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in the fields of commercial law, trusts and probate,
tax, property litigation, and company and insolvency law. He is also a Recorder of the High Court, the
Chairman of the Banking Review Tribunal and a Deputy Chairman of the Administrative Appeals Board. He
was a member of the Law Reform Commission of Hong Kong from 2012 to 2018.
BEER—BIANEERKERM - ERREE - BEr0E - BEBRE  BBEA  WEFL - ARAFERK
EXZTAREEELR -t B iR BREE  RITEBRBFIRTFMTR EFEZEGRIERF - 1R
2012 F E 2018 FHIHEER B EZENELZEGERE -

Dr PM Kam, BBS

HEXELT  WEAEF

Dr Kam is a certified public accountant. He is a former CEO of the FRC. Prior to joining the FRC, he was the
Group Financial Controller of Jardine Matheson Limited.

HET R R0 - B EMBEERBIITERER - RIMAMBKERB 2/ - b EBNERERAFE
Bl

Mr Edward Kwan, MH
BEALE  REFE

Mr Kwan was formerly the Chief Executive Officer of HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited.
RS BEEL SRR (M) AR DB THAER -

Mr Clement Kwok

SHLEE

Mr Kwok is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited.
He has served on the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange Hong Kong Limited (SEHK), the Takeovers and
Mergers Panel, the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee and the
Harbourfront Commission, as well as the Interpretations Committee of the International Accounting Standards
Board in London.

BEERBELERNBEERAR 2 EFRLTHTREE - thBEBBUSRIMBRLIT BN LHE
88 WBLANEES BLHLPEFHLFEIE BLEEREREZES BEFHEES  URUNGRH
MBS ERRERNMEZES -
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS continueq)
ZEEREZEEENRE W

Mr Anthony Leung

RNREE

Mr Leung is the Assurance Leader of EY member firms for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a former member of
the Listing Committee of SEHK from 2009 and completed the six-year term in 2015. He had previously served
on the Professional Conduct Committee of the HKICPA.
ZNREERELKEEREFIBTRBEEIECRA BEBEH A ELTEERZL 8 (£2009 £ 2015 FF
TRRNFER) - RS ERERAMASERTREERES

Mr Albert Li
ZTEESE

Mr Li was formerly a partner of KPMG Hong Kong and his main responsibilities were technical advisory and
audit.

FEECEFEEFREAMEBMARA  TETERBRRERMEE -

Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP?

TREFL TEHAEE 0 KFHL

Dr Li is a senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co, Certified Public Accountants and an Independent Non-
Executive Director of a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also a member of the 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

FHET AT SREAMEBIEREGEA - TRAEBZR LT ARNBELIFNTES - vth2PBEARBA

BEEEFE12EEHEESEE -

Mr Tim Lui, SBS, JP*

BRREE  REFAEZE  ATHL

Mr Lui is a former partner of PwC Hong Kong and a deputy of The National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China.

ERERELBCGEGMEBMOAARA  BEZBAKRKE -

Ms Teresa Ma
BEHzt

Ms Ma is an experienced lawyer and a mediator. She is a board member of and adviser to several civil society
organisations. She was a partner and a member of the International Board of Linklaters.

BRER/EFEMEAARAREE - WEBRARM ERBRIEEZRKNERER - B2 FAERMEBHR
MEBAREBREAEKE

Mr Stephen Mercer

MR E

Mr Mercer is a partner with KPMG in Hong Kong and currently Deputy Head of Audit for KPMG China.
ERBEEERESRBEEERA  BAEETESRTREENRBAIEEGEA
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Mr Kenneth Morrison

NRELE

Mr Morrison is a Senior Advisor of Mazars Hong Kong. He has served on several committees of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants including Accounting Standards, Practice Review and Ethics.
Currently, he serves on the Disciplinary Committee and the Audit Profession Reform Working Group.
NBEEERBATERR (BB PLAZEREM - hE2ESEAFTESHAS/ MABESFER -
ERNEEBRTERES MR RLAEZESNETEENERERNEZKE -

Mr Keith Pogson

25 Finss

Mr Pogson is the Global Assurance Leader for Banking & Capital Markets at EY. He is a former President of
the HKICPA and continues to be a member of the Regulatory Oversight Board, the Audit Committee and the
Disciplinary Panel of the HKICPA. He is a member of the Listing Committee of SEHK and a member of the
Standing Committee on Hong Kong Company Law Reform.
BIEERELKNRITREATHSRREAEBLIE - ZLETESHMAGe R BEREEEER
BLZE® BRZEGRALE/NENKE - thEMRXM LT EEGURATENESBHEZEGFHKE -

Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith?®

BIkBAEE

Mr Sallnow-Smith has over 40 years of experience in the finance and treasury field in the United Kingdom and
Asia, and has extensive knowledge of the property investment/management industry in Hong Kong. He has
been Chairman of The Lion Rock Institute of Hong Kong since April 2016. He was previously Chairman of
the Board of the REIT Manager Link Asset Management Limited (2007-2016) and prior to that he was Chief
Executive of Hongkong Land Limited (2000-2007). He has also been actively involved in public service.
HIKPAEENREEREMNNSHEMEBEREFRI0FEER  TERSNMERE ERTERBRERN
H o E2016F 4 AREEFEEMFILBES LT - b EN 2007 FE2016 FMEFERERERATNES
CEFE o AT @ bR2000F 22007 FE G ETB BB HEE QA RINITRES, - I —HRG2EQNHRE -

Mr Michael Scales

MRS EE

Mr Scales was previously Corporation Secretary of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. He also served as a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, SFC Share
Registrars Disciplinary Committee and SFC Dual Filing Advisory Group.

RS EEGERE DSESRITERDANARME - th BHERRENEEBLEES  EFRPEF
EEZEERNECRBLAREENES M EEBERZEeYEFEEERM/VEKE -

Mr Sin Chung-kai, SBS, JP®

BEfELLE  REFEE > KFEHLT

Mr Sin is a former Council Member of the Financial Reporting Council (2012-2018). He was a Legislative
Councillor representing the geographical constituency of Hong Kong Island (2012-2016). He has served on
several boards and NGOs including the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (2008-2014) and the Hong
Kong Tourism Board (2008-2014). He also served as a member of the Council for Sustainable Development
(2009-2013) and the Operations Review Committee and Witness Protection Review Board Panel of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (2006-2012). He served as a member of the Housing Authority
(2001-2009) and was a board director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited (1999-2009).
BRAERYVEERBDAMKE(2012-2018) B R2012FEE2016FE BRERBEESM T BRENEEHE - I
SREZERENESTS REMER  BEN2008FZ22014FRENLEEEREZRKE - EXED
2008 FZE 2014 FREAEBIRFEERBKE 2009 FZE 2013 FRAAFELRREZEGHKE + KK 2006
FE012FEIRBPAZECE S BNAALTEGNREZABZEZESEE - h B 2001 F £ 2009 F
EEEZEEZEE - RN 1999F £ 2009 FEIBBIRBESFARRAEETHKE -
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS continueq)
ZEEREZEEENRE W

Mr David Stannard?®

HERE A

Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong. He was Executive Director in charge of the Corporate
Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission (1999-2001), a member of the Listing Committees
of the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (2003-
2008) and a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (2003-2010).

HER R E R ER BB ARERM o A 1999F 1 AZ 2001 FOARABS MAESTHERZEGEMNE
BHITEF - 2003F £2008F REBMA X HMARDFIERMAIER EHEEGKE - 2003F £20104F
RAREREEBLREGKE -

Mr Stephen Taylor
Stephen Taylor £ 4

Mr Taylor is senior partner in national audit and assurance technical department of Deloitte China and Head
of the Deloitte Asia Pacific IFRS centre of excellence based in Hong Kong. He is a former member of the
International Accounting Standards Board IFRS Advisory Council and a former Chairman of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Listing Committee.

Stephen Taylor 5t 4£ SR H PRI 2EE MESEBEERMAEREBA - ARRERYTARBEREYH
WELY WP OHRELE - b TER G EAEESERYBREENEDZESWAKE - ARAT
FEEMERIMETEEGNERE -

Mr Huen Wong, BBS, JP

ITHEAE  HEFMER  KFHL

Mr Wong is the Principal of Fried Frank, Hong Kong and Shanghai offices. He is the former Chairman of the
Communications Authority. He is also the former President of the Inter-Pacific Bar Association and the Law
Society of Hong Kong.

FREBEAREMITEER DEDTERA - M BEBAFHEERERE - TRAERATPFEMES
LREEEMgER -

Mr Elton Yeung

BESEE

Mr Yeung is the Strategy and One Firm Services Leader of PwC. He has extensive audit and business
advisory experiences, and has led numerous complex restructuring and listing engagements, including
initial public offerings of PRC state-owned and private-owned enterprises seeking listing in the US, HK and
Mainland China markets. He has in-depth understanding of relevant regulatory environment and financial
reporting requirements for listed companies.

HREREECAICGESTMEBMEMEANEEARA  ZFER-—BEEINETNEEZ AT EHEE
TIE BEHEZ2ESFPERUEHSTIRECENRMHBZCEN LHEAIAR - HEEH - FEUALDEAM
BHFMHENEERENVEREZLEFERAN T -

' Term expired on 10 December 2018.
o {EHIR 20185 12 A10BEM °

2 Resigned with effect from 1 December 2018 on being appointed as Council Member of the FRC.
2 RR2018F 12 A1 BREERUBERBKEREHE -

8 Term expired on 9 January 2019.
o [EHIRR2019F 1 A9 HJEM °

4 Resigned with effect from 19 October 2018.
“ FA20184F 10 A 19 BEHE -

5 Appointed with effect from 11 December 2018
5 R2018F 12 A 11 HEZEMT -
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Financial Reporting Review Panel
Panel Convenors

Mr Eugene Fung, SC!

Mr Robert Gazzi?

Mr Mark Johnson?®

Dr PM Kam, BBS

Mr Carmelo Lee, JP

Mr Andrew Mak, BBS, JP*
Mrs Catherine Morley

Ms Edith Shih*

Mr Paul Shieh, SC

Mr Tang Kwai Chang®

Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP
Mrs Betty Yuen, JP?

Members

Prof Gary Biddle

Mr Abraham Chan, SC®
Mr Edmund Chan

Prof Cheng Cheng Shing
Prof Peter Cheng

Ms Yvonne Cheng, SC
Mr Ambrose Cheung, BBS, MH, JP*
Ms Ivy Cheung

Mr Cheung Kwan Hoi
Mr Jeckle Chiu

Mr Louis Chow?®

Mr Mohan Datwani*

Ms Ding Chen*

Mr lan Farrar

Mr Tommy Fung

Mr Paul Hebditch

Ms Joan Ho

Mr Carlyon Knight-Evans
Ms Kelly Kong

Mr Nelson Lam

Mr Leo Lee®

Mr Ernest Lee®

Mr Lee Yin-toa

Ms Cynthia Lim

Mr William Lim

Ms Fanny Lung?®

Mr Roy Lo*

Dr Guy Look*

Mr Bernard Mak

Mr Christopher Morley
Ms Agnes Nardi

Mr Hong Ng

Mr Paul Phenix

Mr Eric Tang?®

Mr Hamilton Tang

Ms Teo Chew Ping

Mr Tsui Hon Man
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (ontinueq)

ZESREEENE @

Mr Wong Kim Man

Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Thomas Wong

Ms Wendy Yuen

Ms Wendy Yung

Prof Zhang Guo Chang

1 Resigned with effect from 1 December 2018 on being appointed as Council
Member of the FRC.

2 Resigned with effect from 12 November 2018.

3 Appointed with effect from 16 July 2018.

4 Term expired on 15 July 2018.

Audit Investigation Board during 2018

Chairman

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio)

Members

Mr TS Chan

Mr Andes Kwok
Ms Wincey Lam
Ms Anna Lau

Ms Florence Wong
Ms Joyce Woo

Process Review Panel
Chairman
Mr Anthony Chow, SBS, JP

Members

Ms Florence Chan

Prof Low Chee Keong

Ms Edith Shih

Mr Tse Kam Keung

Dr John Poon, BBS, JP' (ex-officio)
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP? (ex-officio)

! Term expired on 14 December 2018.
2 Appointed with effect from 15 December 2018.
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ORGANISATION INFORMATION
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Financial Reporting Council
29" Floor, High Block

Queensway Government Offices

66 Queensway, Hong Kong
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Tel B2 © (852) 2810 6321

Fax (5 &8 ¢ (852) 2810 6320

Email & : general@frc.org.hk (General enquiry —R& &)
: complaints@frc.org.hk (Complaints #&F)

Website 4911 © www.frc.org.hk

Corporate video 25 ©  www.frc.org.hk/en-us/about-the-frc/history (English 2£32)
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www.frc.org.hk/zh-cn/about-the-frc/history (Putonghua 3@ 3% )
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